Minnesota State Colleges and Universities Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes June 17, 2015

Present: Chair Thomas Renier, Trustees Margaret Anderson Kelliher, Duane Benson, Kelly Charpentier-Berg, Alexander Cirillo, John Cowles, Dawn Erlandson, Robert Hoffman, Philip Krinkie, Maleah Otterson, Elise Ristau, Louise Sundin, Michael Vekich, Erma Vizenor and Chancellor Steven Rosenstone

Absent: Ann Anaya

1. Call to Order

Chair Thomas Renier called the meeting to order at 1:15 PM and announced that a quorum was present. Trustee Vizenor participated by phone. Chair Renier recognized and thanked Trustee Ristau whose term ends on June 30, 2015.

2. Chair's Report: Thomas Renier

a. Minutes of the May 20, 2015 Board of Trustees Meeting The minutes were approved as written.

b. Proposed FY2017 Meeting Calendar (Second Reading)

Trustee Ristau moved that the Board of Trustees approve the FY2017 meeting calendar as presented.

The motion carried.

3. Chancellor's Report: Steven Rosenstone

Chancellor Rosenstone highlighted some critical elements of the proposed 2016 fiscal year operating budget. One key element is a tuition recommendation that protects affordability in FY2016 and FY2017. Although the legislature was not able to fund MnSCU's entire request, MnSCU has been able to limit the impact on students. In the next two academic years, our colleges and universities will continue to be by far the most affordable higher education option in Minnesota.

The overall FY2016 all funds operating budget of \$1.93 billion represents a 1% increase in spending over FY2015. Colleges and universities have budgeted \$36 million in reallocations for FY2016 on top of the \$43.4 million they reallocated in FY2015. In accordance with the priorities

Chancellor Rosenstone recognized and thanked Chair Renier for his leadership and his eleven years of service, two as vice-chair and this past year as chair. He also recognized and thanked Trustee Ristau as she completes her two-year term.

The chancellor recognized and thanked five presidents who are completing their terms of service: Cecilia Cervantes, president of Hennepin Technical College; Sue Collins, president of Northeast Higher Education District; Lisa Larson, who served as acting and interim president of North Hennepin Community College; Robert Musgrove, president of Pine Technical and Community College; and Anne Temte, president of Northland Community and Technical College.

Chancellor Rosenstone concluded his remarks by thanking the board, students, faculty, staff, the presidents, the cabinet, the college and university foundations, and our community partners for doing the important work needed to ensure that our colleges and universities remain places of hope and opportunity.

4. Consent Agenda

- a. Approval of Annual Audit Plan for Fiscal Year 2016
- b. Approval of Contracts Exceeding \$1 M for:
 - Systemwide: College Source Vendor, PALS Agreement and Oracle Contract, Insight Public Sector – Microsoft and Related Microsoft Support, and extension of License Agreement with Augusoft, Inc.
 - Minnesota State University, Mankato Hockey Center Lease and IT Network Equipment Purchase
 - Inver Hills Community College Construction Contract
- c. Statewide Student Association Fee Collection Agreements
- d. Minnesota State College Student Association Consideration of Fee Increase
- e. Surplus Action for Real Property at Mesabi Range College Trustee Hoffman moved approval of the Consent Agenda.

The motion carried.

5. Board Policy Decisions

a. Proposed Amendment to Policy 1D.1 Office of Internal Auditing (Second Reading)

Chair Renier called the question on the following motion that was approved by the Audit Committee.

The Board of Trustees approves the recommended changes to Policy 1D.1 Office of Internal Auditing as submitted.

The motion carried.

b. Proposed Amendment to Policy 7.7 Gifts and Grants Acceptance (Second Reading)

Chair Renier called the question on the following motion that was approved by the Finance and Facilities Committee.

Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes June 17, 2015

d. FY2016-2020 Capital Budget Proposal (Second Reading)

Chair Renier called the question on the following motion that was approved by the Finance and Facilities Committee.

The Board of Trustees approves the 2016 capital bonding request was presented in Attachment A-Revised, specifically the projects and priorities for 2016. The chancellor is authorized to make cost and related adjustments to the request as required, and to forward the request through Minnesota Management and Budget to the governor for consideration in the state's 2016 capital budget. The chancellor shall advise the board of any subsequent changes in the capital bonding request prior to the 2016 legislative session. In addition, as funding is

4. Other

Extension of Chancellor's Performance Evaluation

Trustee Cirillo recalled that at the May meeting, the timeframe for the chancellor's annual performance evaluation was extended to be completed no later than August 1. Since then, the Chancellor Performance Review Committee has met with the chancellor and an independent consultant and determined that the August 1 date did not allow sufficient time to complete the stakeholder interviews. The committee recommends extending the timeframe to September for the evaluation to be completed. The chancellor has agreed to the extension.

Trustee Vekich moved to suspend the rules to extend the timeline to complete the evaluation.

The motion was seconded and carried.

Trustee Cirillo moved that the Board of Trustees approve extending the chancellor's annual performance evaluation to be completed in September 2015.

The motion was seconded and carried.

b. Audit Committee, Philip Krinkie, Chair

1. Results of Audit Risk Assessment Committee Chair Krinkie reported that the committee heard a presentation on the Results of Audit Risk Assessment.

c. Academic and Student Affairs Committee, Margaret Anderson Kelliher, Chair

- 1. Student Pipeline Recruitment and Pathways to Higher Education Committee Chair Anderson Kelliher reported that the committee heard a presentation on Student Pipeline Recruitment and Pathways to Higher Education.
- 2. Metro Baccalaureate Plan Update Committee Chair Anderson Kelliher reported that the committee heard an update on the Metro Baccalaureate Plan.
- 3. Update on the Transfer of Credits Committee Chair Anderson Kelliher reported that the committee heard an update on the Transfer of Credits.

d. Finance and Facilities Committee, Michael Vekich, Chair

1. Proposed Amendment to Policy 7.5 Financial Institutions and Investments (First Reading)

Committee Chair Vekich moved to suspend the rules to waive the second reading of the Proposed Amendment to Policy 7.5 Financial Institutions an Investments. The motion was seconded and carried.

Vice Chair

Chair Renier announced that Trustee Margaret Anderson Kelliher was a candidate for the position of vice chair. There were no other nominations.

Chair Renier moved the nomination of Trustee Anderson Kelliher for the position of vice chair. The motion carried unanimously.

11. Other

Vice Chair Anderson Kelliher, on behalf of the board, recognized and gave heartfelt thanks to Chair Renier for his leadership.

12. Adjournment

Chair Renier adjourned the meeting at 2:45 PM.

Ingeborg K. Chapin, Secretary to the Board